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BISHOPTON WAR MEMORIAL
The Memorial was unveiled on the evening of Sunday 12 August 1923 by Col. Thomlinson and dedicated by Rev. Canon Derry, Archdeacon of Auckland.   
On Saturday, 18 August 1923, the Stockton & Darlington Times (North) 

published the following report.
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The newspaper article records that out of the 21 men “who crossed the water” for World War One, 13 had their names engraved on the memorial.  In fact there are now 14 World War One names engraved, the last of whom is J. Cuthbertson.  Unlike the others, his name is out of alphabetical order, which implies that it was added after the unveiling in 1923. 
A further casualty, Private James Dawson, has been identified from research carried out through the North East War Memorials Project (NEWMP). His name is not inscribed on the Memorial but records show that when he enlisted in Newcastle-on-Tyne he declared himself to be a resident of “Bishopton, Durham”. 
Details of the 14 World War One casualties commemorated on the “Bishopton and District War Memorial”, as the newspaper report refers to it, plus Private James Dawson, are set out in the “Every Name A Story” section for Bishopton on the NEWMP website.  So too are details of the two named Second World War casualties and also those of David Petrie, who is commemorated on the RAF Runnymede Memorial.  He was the son of Stanley Petrie, Vicar of the Parish of Bishopton from 1945 to 1950 and his name is inscribed on his father’s gravestone in St. Peter’s Churchyard.  

The lives and service of 18 men are commemorated at Bishopton.   They are:
World War One 


W. Berry 

J. Blinston (inscribed as “J. Blenkston” on the Memorial)
J. Bridges

R. Brown

R. H. Callander

T. Catterson

J. Cowens

G. Longbottom

L. Longbottom

J. Mellanby

F. Patterson

H. Thompson

A. Trotter 
J. Cuthbertson

J. Dawson (not inscribed on the Memorial)

World War Two

G. Brown 

J. Baldwin

D. Petrie (not inscribed on the Memorial)

In tracing details of the commemorated men much information was found online, including Birth and Death Registration dates, Census Returns, the 1939 Register and UK Forces Service Records. Websites such as “Ancestry”, “findmypast”, “The Long, Long Trail” and “Durham at War” were very useful, as also were those of the Commonwealth War Graves Commission (CWGC), the General Records Office (GRO), local Council Registry Offices and the North East War Memorials Project (NEWMP).
The Memorial inscriptions record only surnames and, with one exception, only one initial.   The absence of forenames dates of birth or death and the services and regiments in which the men fought complicated the task of researching them.  Many WW1 Service Records, an excellent source of information, were destroyed as a result of bomb damage in WW2, a fact which added to the challenges of research.

Access to World War Two Service Records is limited because it is essentially restricted to close relatives of the service personnel involved.  Generally, the date of death and place of burial, as held in the CWGC records, is the only information readily available to the public.

In terms of both GRO and Census Registration Districts, Bishopton was in Stockton from 1838 to 1895 and then came under Sedgefield from 1896 to 1938, at which point the village transferred to Durham South Eastern.  The extracts from Ordnance Survey maps of Bishopton Parish and of Bishopton village shown here date from the mid 1890’s, the period when many of the men who fought in WW1 were born and grew up. 
The 14 First World War casualties named on the Memorial should be viewed in the context of a total population for the Parish of St Peter’s Bishopton in 1911 of 455 souls of all ages, of whom 251 were male and 204 female. The breakdown was 349 in Bishopton, 48 in Newbiggin and 58 in Little Stainton.
Many of the occupations recorded from Census Returns, for both the casualties and the members of their families, mention bricklayers, an iron works and a blast furnace. These men were in all likelihood employed at Carlton Iron Works at Stillington. The key dates involving brick making and the iron works are:-

· 1860 manufacture of bricks started at Moor Closes

· 1865 start of construction of iron works and blast furnaces

· 1870 works bought by Briggs Bros. North of England Industrial Iron & Coal Co.  Third blast furnace erected. (Operational 1871)

· 1877 Company changed to Carlton Iron Works Company Limited

· 1888 40 No. blast furnaces erected

· 1912 Blacking Mill started in iron works rolling mill building

· 1920 Dorman Long took over the Iron Works

· 1922 the Iron Works employed 405 men and boys plus 51 women and girls

· 1926 formation of North Eastern Iron Refinery Co. Ltd., - start of specialised refined pig iron

· 1930 Dorman Long close the works

· 1931 the village of Carlton Iron Works was renamed Stillington

· 1935 end of Carlton Iron Company

· 1937 Slag Works (The Cracker) closed 
The only readily available population-related information for the period between 1911 and the end of WW1 is the census data from April of that year so the movement of people into and out of the parish is not recorded.  This means it is not possible to fully corroborate information for John Blinston, James W. Cuthbertson and James Dawson to confirm their link to “Bishopton and District” with complete certainty.

Campaign and Service Medals
World War One
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	1914                          “Mons” Star
	1914-15                             Star
	British War Medal 1914-18
	Allied Victory         Medal


	Silver War Badge


 The 1914 and 1914-15 Stars 
The 1914 Star, often called the “Mons Star”, was authorized by King George V in April 1917 for those who had served in France or Belgium between 5th August 1914 to midnight on 22nd November 1914 inclusive. 
The 1914-15 Star was awarded to all who served in any theatre of war against Germany between 5th August 1914 and 31st December 1915, except those eligible for the 1914 Star. 
· The British War Medal 1914-18 
This medal was awarded to officers and men of the British and Imperial Forces who either entered a theatre of war or entered service overseas between 5th August 1914 and 11th November 1918 inclusive. 
· The Allied Victory Medal  (colloquially known as  'Wilfred')
By agreement, the allies each issued their own bronze victory medal with a similar design, similar equivalent wording and identical ribbon.  The British medal depicts a winged classical figure representing victory and approximately 5.7 million Allied Victory medals were issued.

Pip, Squeak and Wilfred are the slightly irreverent but affectionate names given to the three WW1 campaign medals — The 1914 Star or 1914-15 Star, the British War Medal 1914-18 and the Allied Victory Medal respectively.  By convention all three medals are worn together and in the same order from left to right when viewed from the front.  
Pip the dog, Squeak the penguin and Wilfred the young rabbit were characters in a 1920’s Daily Mirror strip cartoon.  For some reason the names of the three characters became associated with the three campaign medals being issued at that time to many thousands of returned and returning servicemen, and the names stuck.
If a soldier had no 1914 or 1915 qualifying service he was awarded only the British War and Allied Victory Medals.  When worn as a pair they were commonly known as ‘Mutt & Jeff’, again named for characters in a newspaper strip cartoon, this time American in origin.  First published in 1907 as a strip of panels, as opposed to a single panel, it is regarded as the first "comic strip" to successfully pioneer that since-common format.
· The Silver War Badge 
First issued in September 1916 the badge was originally awarded to officers and men who were discharged or retired from the military forces as a result of sickness or injury caused by their war service. The recipient would also receive a certificate with the badge. The badge was made of Sterling silver and was intended to be worn on the right breast of a recipient's civilian clothing. It could not be worn on a military uniform.
World War Two
The War Medal 1939-45
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There is little publicly available information about Service Personnel in World War Two, including individual medal awards.  However, it can reasonably be assumed that the men named on the Memorial would at least have been entitled to receive, albeit posthumously, the War Medal 1939-45.  This was awarded to all forces personnel who served full time for 28 days or more between 3 September 1939 and 2 September 1945.
Regimental & Service Arm Badges for World Wars One and Two
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	Alexandra, Princess of Wales's Own Yorkshire Regiment                The Green Howards

	Canadian Overseas Expeditionary Force
	Durham   Light Infantry
	Grenadier            Guards
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	Northumberland Fusiliers
	Princess Charlotte of Wales’s                  (Royal Berkshire) Regiment

	Royal Air Force       Volunteer Reserve
	Royal Army         Service Corps
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	Royal Engineers
	Royal Field Artillery
	The Prince of    Wales’s Own   (West Yorkshire)              Regiment
	York & Lancaster Regiment



